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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Tu the Shareholders of Lecjam Sports Company
{A Sowdi Jodnt Sieck Company)

Ohpinion

Wo have audited the fisancial staiements of Leejam Spors Company | “the Company™), which comprise
the statement of financial positian 2= at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, starcment
of comprehersive income, statement of changes in equity and satement of cash fows for the veur then
ended, and sodes to the financial stalements, incheding 2 summssry of significant accounting policies,

[n our opamion, the acconspanying finnncial staterens present faily, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as 81 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and it cash fows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorssd in fhe
Kingdom of Saudi Arbia and other standards and pronouncemsents that are epdorsed by the Sniunki
Crrganization far Chartered and Professional Accountants.

Basis for Opininn

We conducted our nedit in sccordance with Internationn] Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Sash Arabia, Ous responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stalements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in aceordance with professional code of conduct and ethics endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arshin that are relevant 1o our awdit of the financial statements, apd we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibililies in sccordance with these requirements. We believe that the andit evidence we have shtained
i sufficeent and appropriate to provide & basis for our opindon

Emphasiz of & matter:
We draw sieniion to note 28 to the finmncial statements. As stated therem, during the year ended 31
December 2011, mtnagement has received an asseasment order from the Zakat, Tax and Customs
Auttority (“ZATCA™) on the ground that part of the Company's profits for the year 2015 were siabject to
tneams tax. Ous ggxnion is not modified in respect of this matter,

(hbier matter

Thee financial statemnents of the Company fot the year ended 31 Decernber 2020, were audited by anothar
aaditer who expressed an unqualified opizion on those financial swaferents om 2 Eanjab 1442
(comesponding to 14 February 2021).

Key Andit Matters
Yooy owdit matiers are those matters that, in ouwr profeseional judgment, were of most sipnificance i our
wadit of the financial statements of the current year, These matters were addressed in the coniext of oer
wadit of the financial staterments as o whole, and in forming swditor's ppinicn thersom, and we de not
provide o separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how oar asdit
addressed the matter s provided in that context,

We bave fulfilled the responsibulities descnbed in the Auditor's Resporsibilities for the audit of the
firancinl staternents sectiom of cur repoct, including in relation fo these matters. Accordi Iy, our auwdit
inchuded the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the fiske of muterial

misslatisnent of the financesl statements. The results of our audit procedures, inclisding the precedures

;prﬁ}md to address the matters below. provide the basis for our audit opinion on the HECOMIPAnYiNE
Inaial statemendts.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT {continued)
To the Sharehalders of Lecjam Sports Company (costinued)

(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)
Key Auwdit Matters (continued)

I_EH'I.I:III matter

Revemine recogmition

How our andli addressed the key audit matter

The Company reparted revense of SR E8S
million from subscriptions and membership
fees of fitness traimdmg centers wmd relatsd
activitses for the year ended 31 December 2021

' We consilered this & key audis matter due to s

recopmition in the fitess fraining  sector
| requires povenue to be recopnized over the e
of subsceiption period,

Additionally, there are inherent risks about the
gccuracy of revenucs recorded due o either
e fective mumeal and / or IT related controls,

Befer 1o pote 4.1 for the sccounting policy
rebated to revenue recognition end mote & for the
related disclosures,

application of accounting standard for revenus |

Our audit procedures included. =mong others, the
! following:
# Dvaluated dhe  appropriaeness

of  revenue
recognilion policies. |
tnvolved our IT specialists in testing the deaign,

implermentation and operating cffectiveness of
iystemn  iotermal controls relaed o revenss
reCigmirtion.

Tested the sccuracy of customer invoice generstion
o A sample basis aed wested 8 sample of the
discounts and promotions applied 1w customer
fvaice.

Tested cash receipts for 8 sample of customsers |
back o the mvoice,

Performed analytical procedures by COmMpArLLE
expectations of revenue with actusl revenue and
analyzing varisnces,

Asscssed the appropriniencsa of the relevant

During the year, the Zakat, Tax and Custom
Autharity (“ZATCA™) dssoed an misessment for
the year 2003 on the pround thai part of the
Company's profits for e year 2015 were
subjiect to income tax. The company bas filled
an appeal against the assesment.

The Company's masagement is of view that
they will win this appeal and based on that they
did mof acsount for ndditional zbend Tinbility.

The sccounting for this unceriain  zakat
provision comprise sgoificant judgment by the
management maimdy in the aréas whether 1o
recopnise this ncertads provision as &
camtingent hability or ns 8 provision,

(riven the high leved of management’s judement
we eongidered this area 1o be impoitant for ar
andil

| Beferio noae 38

We performed the followmg procedisres in relation &
he additional assessed zakal liabiliy:

Cmined the understunding of the proces
maragetaent followed 1o assess the impact of the
ABSEESTER].

Evaluated the zakst opmion of management’s
eapert obtained by the Company on the respective
CHSE.

Evalusted the reasonsblencss of manngement's |
assassment for the accourting of the uncertnin
zikat provision in the light of zakat regulation,
recent practives of ZATCA and merits of the
gppeal filed with the ZATCA agains the
BRSERETICN rarsd.

Assessed the appropriatences of the disclosures
made in relation to the comtingent liahility in
respect of the additional lisbility for the Zabot
asgessed and the status of the related appeal,
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT {coatinued)
To the Sharehwolders of Leejum Sparts Company {continued)
(A Seudl Arabian Joint Stock Company)

(ther information included in the Company’s 2021 Ansual Report

Other informstion consiet: of the information included in e Company's 202 | annual report, other than
the fmancial ststerments and mer auditar's repurt theseon. Management & responsible for the oiher
tnfortaation in its anmal report. The Company's 2021 annunl repart i expected to be made available to us
afier the date of this sudror's repon.

Cur openion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express ay
form of asmmrance conelusion thereon,

In connection with our awdit of the financial statements, our resporsibility 1s to read the other mformation
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
maszrially inconsistent with the Gnancial statements or our knowiedpe obtained in the sudit or ctherwise
appears 1o be materially soisstated,

When we read the Company's 2021 aoousl repart, if we conclade that there is 0 maters] misstxlerent
therein, we are required to communicate the mstter fo thase charped with govemance.

Responsibilities of Management snd those Charged with Governonce for the Finunclal Statemen i
Monsgemen: is responsible for the preparation and fair presentstion of the financial statements in
accordanee with International Financial Reponting Stendards that are endorsed in the Kmgdom of Sandi

and Professional Accountants and the provisions of Companies” Law and Byv-laws, and for such intemnal
controd &5 management determines is necessary to etable the preparation of financial statements that are
frée from materin] misstatement, whether due o fraud ar emor.

Ia preparing the Sinancial statements, mansgement is responsible for assessing the Company ability to
canlinue a5 a going conceny, disclosing, as applicable, martars reiated to going coneern and using the going
conosrl basis of accounting unless mansgement either intends io liguidate s Company or 1o cemse
aperalms, or fag bo realistie altemative bat to do so,

Those charged with govemanee are responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reparning process.

Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Orir objectives arc 1o obtain reasonable assurance sbout wheiher the financial slatements as & whole are
free from material misstaement. whether des o freud or emmor, and to issie an auddor’s report that includes
our opinice, Ressonable assurance is a high level of assurance bur s not A guarantes that an audit copducted
m aecordenes with Internetional Standards on Auditing that are endorsed m the Kingdom of Saudi Arabis
will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatcmenis can arise from framd or ervor and
#re consdered material if, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influspce
the cconomic decisions of agers taken on the basis of these francial statem ents.

Aa part of an audit in accordance with Internetionsl Standards on Auditing that are endorssd in the
Eingdom of Saudi Arabia, we enercise professional judgment and mamtain professional skepticiam
throughout the audit. We also;

= [dentify and assess the ricks of material rmisstatement of the fnancial stwtements, whether dus to
fransd o eoror, desipn and perform sudit procedures respomsive to those risks, and obzin zudit
evidence that is sufficient aml appropriste 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of oot
detectmng & material misstatement resulting from frad is higher than for coe resudting from error,
as frowd may invalve collusica. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepressntations, or the override
af internal conrol.
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INDEPENDENTAUDITORS REPORT {eomtinmed)
To the Sharcholders of Leejam Sports Cempany (continued)
(A Saudl Joint Stock Company)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financlal Stutements feantinmed)

= Obeas an understanding of internal control relevant to the sudit in orderto design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circurnstaness, but not for the purpase of CXPrEssINg an opdnion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s imgernal comtrol,

* [Evaluate the appropeistencas of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accouting
estimates and related disclosures made by AN Fement.

*  Conclude oo the appropristeness of management's use of the going concem hasis of BCeounting
and, based on the audit evidense ohtained. whether & musterinl uncentsinty exists related to evints
or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's ability to coptinue &5 a poing
concern. [f we conclude that 5 material uncertainty exisa, we are required 1o dow pitenien in our
auditar’s repan to the related disclosures in the financial stements or, if such disclogures ane
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the asdit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions may ease the Company o
CCAE [0 CONTInLE a3 4 Eoing comcem,

*  [Evelusie the overall presentation, structure and comtent of the financial statements. inclucking the
disclodares, and whether the Anancial sitements represent the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves fir presentation.

We commusnicale with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significamt audit findings, including any sipnificans deficiancies in internal
enatred thal we identify durthg our sudit.

We also provide those charged with govemnance with & statement that we have complied with relevant
ethiical requirements regarding independence, aad to comminicate with them all relationships and other
mutters that may reasonsbly be thought to bear on our independence, and where spplicable. sebions tnkes
ko pliminate threats ar safeguards applied

From the mutters s ommundeated with those charged with Eovernance, we defermine those matiers thas were
af most sigrificance in the audit of the financial staterments of the curment year and are therefore the key
audit matters, W dederibe these mstters in owr suditor’s sepert unless law or regalstion precludes public
disclosure sbout the matter ar when, in extremely rare citcumstances, we determine that & matter should
not be communicated [n oar report because the advemse comsequences of doing so would rezsonably be
expected t0 dutweigh the public interest benefits of such comirumicntion.

for Ernst & Young Profissional Services

Waleed . Tawfiq

Certihied Public Accountant
Licerse Wo. 437

Rivadh: 5 Rajab 1443H
6 February 2022




LEEJA_M SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LDSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

o2y 20X
Notes R SR

Revenue & B85, 183,130 602,599332
Cost of revenme 7 (512,960, 365) {322,708 760)
GROSS PROFIT 3TE322. 7T 3% 890 461
General and administrative expenses & (BE322.770) (76,914 400)
Advertising and marketing expenses b (14,405,763} (16,473 .288)
Impairment of non-financial assets 12 {12,9%45,904) (6631,011)
Write-off of non-financial assets = (43,582 G55)
Reverse Nallowance) for expected creadit losses 1% 1,683,504 [2.342,315)
OPERATING PROFIT / (LSS 258,331,927 16,053,516)
Finanee costs 10 (46,379,354 (52.670,076)
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE FAKAT 210,951,573 {58, 723,592)
Zalat 28 (5,932,354) -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2k, 020,219 {38,723,397)
EARNINGS / {L0OSS) PER SHARF

Basic and diluted carnings / (loss) per share I 383 {1.12}

™,
y””\y{
Mofammad Merajuddin Anibony Craie Eflion arntad AlSagri
Chief Financia! Officer Acting Chief Executive (Mficer Cheirmnt

The attached motes 1 1o 38 form an titegral part of these financial stacments,
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

221 2020
Motes SR &R
Met peofil / (loss) for the vear 206,020,259 (38,723,592)
(nher comprehensive income
fem what will nov e reclasified fo statement of profit ar loss in
Fulueguen periods.
Re-measurement {loss) / gain on emplovees end of service ot {1503, 08101 1,433,560
henefits abligation
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE 14,517,139 (57,290.032)

YEAR

X 2

Mabawbad Meraiuddin Amthary Craig Effion
Chiéel Fimancio! QfTeer Acting Chief Executive Qfficer

The attsched notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these finmcial statements.
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Leejam Sports Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

AESETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Right-af-use assets

Intangible aseeis

Gaodwill

Advances to suppliers and contractors
TOTAL NON- CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Prepayments and other current assets
Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Redained eamings

TOTAL EQUATY
NON-C'URRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Lease Liabilitics

Employees’ end of s2rvice benefits

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIARBILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bommowings

Leasz linhilities

Accounis pavable

Accrued expenses and other curvent lahilities

Deferred revenie

Provvision for zakat

TOTAL CURRENT LIABRILITIES
TOTAL LIARILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

f’"“’d}(

Mohammad Merajuddin
Chigf’ Fimancial Offfcer

Notazx

12
13
4
15

i)
[
20

et

13
I3
23
26
2T
28

Y eantl

Anthony Craig Ellion

Acting Chief Execurive Officer

The attached notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of thess financial statements.

26021 200
5k SR
1,509,992 894 1,445,944 434
787,384,535 771,477,155
058,447 1.971,114
9,445,544 9,445,544
23,741,377 13272419
2,343,623 797 2242110666
10,222, 768 10,559, 104
36,333,370 35,328,394
23,753,085 21,245,194
— 170.ER6073 258,071,877
150,195,299 325,206,571
2503 418,056 2,567,317,237
S13.815.610 23833610
76,613,240 56,021,218
204,112,819 _ B4620236
Rl 4,560, 669 664 484 D64
238,038 455 348.648,630
861,554,948 52,863,246
4L 421,197 37,158,533
1.141,044,630 L2386 70,418
126,912,106 138,937 826
79,498,303 67,888,714
80,885,297 52,660,018
54,425,849 78,516,737
0,032,726 326,022 298
B, 0069516 117,162
648,203,797 664,162,755
— 1,789.248.427 1,902,833,173
2,593 818,006 2.567317,237

mrad AlSapri
Clratirman

i



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPAN Y)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202}

Az at | January 2020

Lnss for the year
URher comprehensive income
Tatal comprebensive loss for e year

Ax it 31 Decem ber 2020
Profit for the year

Oiher comprehensive meome
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve
Dividends (Nate 30)

Ax at 31 December 2021

ﬁ""\-\.
;-(”/v?(
Monammad Morajddin
Chisf Fiancial Offcer

The attached notes | 1o 38 form an integral

Capital
SR

523,833,610

Statutory
Reserre

SR

56,021,218

Retarned
e gs
AR

141919268

Toral
SR

T20.TH 096

|

(38,723,592}

(58,723.507)

part of these finanoial stasements.

= 1,433,560 1,433,560

- - 37,200,032} [57.200,032)

523.833.610 56021218 B4.610 236 664 484,064

- 186,020,219 2006, 020,219

= [Eqﬁ'ﬁm.lj “.ﬂu.ﬂﬂ'}

= = 204,517,130 04507130

20,602,022 (20,602,022) =

- - (64431,534) (64,431,534

5213833 610 e 23,240 204, 112819 S, 560,669
Artirory Cralg Eifion Alf Hamad AlSagri

Actiag Chizf Executive (ifficer Chrairmn




LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / {Toss) before zakiat

Adjpustments to reconcile profit / (loss) befiore 7akal 1o net cash flows:

Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assels
Amortization of intengible assets

Impairment loss of property and equipment
Rent conceasions on lease payments

Giain on bease cancellations

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Write=off of non-financial assets

Reverse / {allowance) for expected crodit losses
Fmance costs

Provision for emplovees' end of service beneflis

Working capital changes:
Inventorics
Prepayments and other currear aswers
Tride receivables
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses amd other corrent Habilities
Defermred revenue
Cash from operations

Employees' end of service benefits paid
Zakat paid
Met cash from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
progerty and equipment, net
Intangible assets

Net ensh used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Froceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Finance cost paid

Payment of feass linbilitiex

Dividend paid

MNet cash uzed in Anancing activities

MNET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE

YEAR

MNodar

12
I3
14

|12

13

[2
1%
10

|
it

23
43

20

The attached notes 1 to 38 form an imtegral part of these financial statements,

2029 Hix)

&R SR
211,082,573 (58,723,592}
137,684,880 137,733,791
69,764,264 68,024,883

116,342 11,149
12,045 904 6,631,011
{18,933,943) (8,116,850)
'ﬂqﬂmm -
281,250 -

- 43,582,965
{1,683,504) X3S
46,370,354 32,670,076

D097 505 9.0, 103
465,848,320 253, 245851

336,356 2693578
{1,004,974) (7 B8 86l

(824,300) 3418758
28,205,279 29 336,274
(22004 65T 34,637,823
(15,989,572} 23,616,769
2 471,443 B39, 100,193
{6, 338,011) {3.511.260)

- (5,503,772

438,133 432 320,995,161
(226, 496,7100 (109, 799.923)
{1,203,675) {29, B0a)
(227.700.385)  (109,820,723)
L7 440 182537287
(1435433140 (119,637.003)
(11,101,780} (19,776, 740)
{90,451,663) (73.285433)
{64,431,534) -
(2R8,620.851) (30,161.909)
_ ATHIET.B04) 190003520
258073877 68,070,348
179 566,073 258073877




LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFTCANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Additions 10 right-of-use sesets and corresponding kease linklligy 97,931,453
Transters to property and equipment from capital Work-in-progress 145,056,611
Capitafization of horrawing cost 1,085,642
Cepitalization of right-of-use depreciation 6,387 )
Interest an lease liabilitics capitalized for under construction fitmess
centers IA45,78
o,
;hff#\f:£><f
Mirhanmad Mergiuddin Anthany Craig Eilion -
Chigf Financial Officer Acting Chigf Executive Officer Clrairman

The nttached wotes 1 10 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

5,103,653

135360 4483
2655581
5934 407

3093523

AlSaar

10



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 CORFPORATE INFORMATION

Leggm Sports Company (“the Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company and listed on the Saudi Stock Exchunge
Market. The Company was established in aceordance with the Minisiry of Commerce and Industry resolution Mo
L46/5 dated 29 Rabi 11, 14294 (corresponding 1o 5 May 2004) and registered under commercial registration (RS Mo
40301 80323 dated 19 Jumada' 11 14291 {corresponding to 23 June 2008). The address of the Company’s reglstered
affice iz Thumamah Street, PO, Box 295245, Riyadh 11351, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The objectives of the Company are construction, managerient and operation of sports and entertaining centers and
whobesale and retail trading in sporis’ clothes and equipment and owning real estale and constucting buildings
necessary o achieve its purposes and advertising, coastruction, manasement and owning hotels and fumished
aparmments and other sctivities that the Company needs tn use, The Company’s aperations ane located in the Kingdom
of Saudi Ambia and United Arab Emirates

Ihe Company acquired 95% of the outstanding shares of Fitness Time for Trading Compuny Limited in order o
acquire the rademark “Fitness Time”, The rademark is renewahle for a period of 10 years or periods at the option of
the Company for & nominal fee. Fimess Time discontinued its operations after the trademark was ransferred to the
Company. The management helieves that Finess Time is immaterial to the Company; henee, do not consalidare the
regults of operations of Fitness Time and its financial position in the finamcial statements of the Company,

The financlal statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 were antharized foe ELTTHE TS
accondance with the Board of Directors resolution on 4 Rajal 1443H (corresponding 1o 5 February 2022)

F BASIS OF PREFARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These fmancial statements have been prepared in scoordance with Intemational Financial Reporimg Standasds
CIFRET) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("KEA"} and other standards and pronouncements as endorsed
by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professionnl Accountants CROCPA") {collectively referred o “IFRS a5
endorsed in KSA™).

2.2 Basts of measuremienil
Ikese finaneial statements have been prepared usder the historical cost basts, excepl otherwize indicated.
23 Functiomal and presentation currency

The finzncinl statements are presented in Saudi Rival (“SR™) which is the Company's functional ond presentation
currency, and all values are stated n full, except when otherwise indicated.

11



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

3 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
31 New standards, amendments to standards and nterpretations applicabls from 1 Jerrmerry 2021

There are ne new stndards applicable to the Company. However, there are a number of amendments to existing
stancards which are affective frem | Januwary 2022, but do not have a maeterial effect on these financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchimark Reform — Phase 2: Amendsents to IFR5 9, IAS 3%, [FRS 7, IFRS 4 and [FRS 16

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the fimancial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate (IBOR } is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments inchuda the following
practical expedients:

* A practical expedient 1o require contractual changes, or chianges to cash flows that are directly required by
the reform, 0 be treated s changes to a flosting interest rate, equivalent 1 & movement in a market rute of
imETesy,

®  Permit changes required by IBOR refon to be made o hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued.

*  Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
tstrument is designated as a hedgge of a risk eomponel

These amendments had no impact of the Company™s financial satements,

Covid-19 Related Rewt Concessions and Corid-19 Related Renf Concessions betyosud

30 foose 2021 = Amendsirents fo IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the [ASB ssued Covid-19 Related Remt Concessions - amendment 1o IFRS 16 Leases. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
eoncessions arising as a direct conseguence of the Covid- 19 pendemic. As & practical expedient, o lessee may eloct
Aok t0 asess whether 8 Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor i g legse modification. A lessee that makes
this election sccounts for any change in leass payments resuliing from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same
way it would account for the change under TFRS 16, if the change were not & bease modification.

The Company applied the practical expedient available under the smendment on its annual financial statements for
the vear ended 31 December 2020, The Company applied the amendment prospectively and it had no impaet on
retamed carnings ot T January 2020,

It March 2021, the Board ametided IFRS 16 to extend the availahility of the practical expedient by one year (2021
amendment). The practical expedient in the 2021 amendment applies 1o rent concessions for whick any reduction in
Jewse payments affects only payinents originilly due on or before 3 June 2022, prowided the other conditions for
applving the practical expedient are met. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after |
April 2021 with earlier adoption permitted.

In accordence with paragraph 2 of IFRS 186, & lessee {s required 10 apply the relief consistently to eligible contracis
with similar characteristics and in similer circamstances, Irrespective of whether the contract became eligible for the
practical expedient as a result of the lesses applying the 2020 amendment or 2021 amendrmens

In view of the above extension to the amendment. the Company continues apply the practical expedient availablbs
under the amendment on it financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2021, Also refer to note 13 of thess
financial sinfements,
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT ST OCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202]

3 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS {cantinued)

32 New IFRS standards, amendments to standards and tnterpretations not yet effectioe

The amended standards and interpresations thet are izswed, but not el effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements are disclosed bebow, The Company intends to adopt these new amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amevulmenis to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nomne-cuprent

In January 2020, the 1ASB issued amendments to paragruphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 1o specify the requirements for

clussifying liabilithes ss current or nok-current. The amendments wharify:

*  What &= meant by a right to defer settlement

= Thart a right to defer must exist =t the cad of the reporting period

»  That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercize its deferral right

*  That only if an embedded derlvative in a convertible liability & itself an equity instrument would the terms of a
Hability not impact its classification

The amendments ane effective for annual reponing perieds beginning on or after 1 fanuary 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. The Company is currcatly assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and
whether existing loan agresments may require renegetistion,

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendirents to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASE issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework. The amendments are intended io replace a reference 1 the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issuad in 1985, with o reference 1o the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing s requirements,

The Board alse pdded an exception 1o the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoud the issue of potential “day 27 gaing
or fosses arising for liabilities and contingent lmbilities that would be within the scope of LAS 37 or [FRIC 21 Levies,
if mcutred separately,

At the same time, the Board decided o elarify existing goidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be
affecied by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.,
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 Janwary 2022 and apply

prospectively,

Onerons Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Anendments to IAS 37
In May 2020, the IASE issued smendments to [AS 37 to specily which costs an entity needs to include when ssessing
whether a contract I3 onerous or loss-rmnking.

The amendments apply & “directly related cost approach™ The costs that refate directly w & contract o provide goods
or services include both incremental costz and an allocation of costs directly related to contract sctivities. General and
administrtive costs do not relate dirsctly to a contrect and are exclhsdead anless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the coniract

The amendments are effective for annual reponting periods beginning on or after | January 2022, The Comgpany will

apply these amendments 1o contracts for which it has not yet falfilled all #is obligations at the beginning of the anneal
reportmg period in which it first applies the amendments.

13



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS {continued)
32 New IFRS standurds, amendments to standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued )

Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendinents to IAS 16

In May 207, the IASE issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceads before Intended Use, which profibits
entities deducting from the cost of an ftam of property. plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset io the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of aperating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing thoss
items, In profit or loss,

The amendment s effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2022 and must be applied
retrospectively 1 items of property, plant and equipiient made available for use on or afier the beginning of the earljest
period presented when the entity firs applies the amendment.

Defurition of Accounting Estinates - Amendments to IAS §

In February 2021. the IASB issuad amendments 1o [AS &, in which it introduces a definition of “accounting estimates”,
The amendiments clarify the distinction berwsen changes in accounting estimares and changes m accounting poficies
and the. correction of errers, Alse, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2003
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the star of that
peniod. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed,

The nmendments are not expected to have a material impacd on the Company™s financlal statements,

Dhisclogure of Accounting Policies - Antendments to IAS 1 and IERS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASE issued amendments to TAS | and IFRS Practice Stafement 2 Muking Materiality
Fudgements, in which it provides guidance and examiples to help entities apply materiality judgements 1o Becounting
policy disclosures. The amendments aim 1 help entities provide sccounting policy disclosures that are more useful
by replecing the requizement for entitles to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to
disclose their ‘materizl’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about sccounting policy disclosures. The amendments 1o 1A% 1 are applicable for annozl periads
beginning on or after | January 2023 with earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandstory guidance on the application of the definition of material 1o sccounting policy
information, an effective date for these amendments i not ABCESSATY,

The amendments are nol expected to have a material inepact on the Company’s accounting policies disclosures,

IFRE 9 Fannancial Instruments - Fees in the "1 per cewni” test for devecognition of financial Habilities

Ag part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the [ASH issued amendment 1o IFRS 9, The
emendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financia)
liability are substantfally different from the terms of the origmal financial Hability. These fees ifclude only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by efther the borrower ar lender om
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment o financial liabilizies that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annus| reporting period in which the entity first gpplies the amendmens.

The nmendment is effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after | fanuary 2027 with earlier adoption
permitted. The Company will apply the amendments w financlal liahilities thist are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the @mual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK, COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted are oz follows:

4.7 Erpetide

Type of Product

Subsermptions and
membership revense

Personal training

Rental incoma

Nature and timing of satisfaction of
performance obligatiens, inclading
significant payment terms

Performance obligation & satisfied
over tme during the subscription
period. For  individual  customers,
payment i3 received in advance. For
corporates. considerstion is received
besed on credit terms agreed with the
coTporate custamers,

Performance  obligation {5 satisfied
aver time based on personal training
(PT) sestions and pavment is received
in advance.

Performance obligntion is  sarisfied
over time during the lease period and
payment i3 received based om
coniractual terms with the {enants,

15

Revenue recognition
under IFR5 15

Subscriptions and membershp fee are
recognized as revenue systematically
over the terms of the subsicription
period. The subscription fee, received
i acdvance, is inftially recognized ns
deferred revenue and subssquently
amortised over the subscription period.

Personal traming fee are recosmized as
revenue as and when related services
are  rendered  and  performance
obligation are satisfied. Fee received in
achvance  is initially recognized as
deferred revenue and subsequently
recognized when PT sessions are
conductad or training period ends
whichever is earfier,

Rental income i recomnized on a
siraight fine basis over the terms of the
lease agrecmonts,



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {comtinged )

4.2 Cost of revenie and othet expenses

Costs of revenue consisis of direct and indireet costs arising in connection with the generation of revenue. Allocations
between costs of revenue, advertising and marketing and general and administration expenses, when requirsd, are
made on a consistent basis depeading upon the nature of the expense

4.3 Current versus mon-currmnt clasgification

expected to be realized or intended fo be s0ld or consumed in the normal operating cvele,

held primarily for the purpose of trading,

expected 10 be realized within twelve months afler the reporsing period, or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setthe a liability for at least twalve
manths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classifed ns non-cument.

& & = w»

A lehility Is current when:

it is expected to be settled {n the normal operating cycle,

it is held primarily for the purpose of frading,

it is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

thers & no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the Hability for o least twebve months afier the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all tther labilites as nat-Current
44 Property imd equipment

{i] Initial recognition and subsequent messgrement _

Property and equipment except land, are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation and any accumulated impadterent
kasges. The cost bess estimated residual valse of property’ and equipment if any, is deprecisted on a straicht-lme basis
overthe estimated useful lives of the respective sssess. Land {s stated at cost

Cost includes expenditure that is directly atributable o the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-comstructed assers
ncludes:

the cost of materials and direct fabor
any other costs dirccaly attributahle to bringén the assets to a working condition for their intended wse;

®  when the Company has an obligation to reriove the asset or restore the site, an estimaste of the costs of dismantling
and removing the Hems and restoring the site on whick they are located: and

* capitalized borrowing costs, during the constriction phase.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continmed)

44 Property and equiptnent {continued)

(i) Depreciation

The estimated depreciation mées of the principal clnsses of property and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 4% — 122 or the leage term
Motor vehicles 2095
Sports tools and equipment 10%
Electrical equipment and air conditiogers 0%
Computers 20
Furhiture and office equipment 12.5%

Any gam or loss on disposal of an fiem of property and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss

() Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the assets CHITYINE AMOAnt or recognized as 8 separate sset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably, The carrving amount of any component accounted for as g scparate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the
reporting period m which they we incumed,

(i) Impairment of noo-linancial assets inchuding intangibile assers

Non-financial assets are reviewsd for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate thet the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized in the staternent of income for the amount
by which the carrying amount of the psset exceeds its recovershle amount which is the higher of an asset's fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. For the purpise of assessing impairment, assers are grouped of lowest levels for
which there arc scparately identifisble cash flows {cash-generating units), Mon-finsncinl assets that suffered
Impairment are reviewed for possihle reversal of impaisment at each reporting dote. Where an impairment logs
subsequently reverses; the earmying amount of the asser o wash-generating unit s increased 1o the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but the increased camying amount should not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, had no impairment loss been recognized for the assets or cash-generating unit in prior vears, A
reversal of an impaisment doss is recognized os income immediately in the statement of income,

(vl Derecpgnition

Property and equipment are de-recognized when they have been disposed or no future economic benefits are expeacied
to orise from their wse or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an flem of propery and equipment
15 ncluded in the stasement of income at the time the jtem is de-recomnized,

4.5 Intangtble assets

Intangible assers with finite useful lves that are acquired separately are carried at cost bess secumulited anartization
and accumulated impairment losses, Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amartized and carried 8t cost
less aceumulated impairment losses, Amortization & recognized on n straight-line basis over their estimatad wsefil
lives. The estimated useful life and amortizaton method ure reviewed at each Fnancial year end, with the effect of
any changes i estimaie being nccounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separamely are carried st cost less accurubated impaimnent kosses, Intangible assets, which COMmprise
somputer softwire, are amonized at straight line method with an estimated usefial 1ife of 10 vears,
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
45 Intasgible assets (combinued)

An Intangible asset is- derecogrized on disposal, of when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal, (Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized i the statement of profit or loss when the aeset
i5 derecogn] zed

Sofiware costs associated with maintaining software PrOgrams are recogmized 85 an expense &s meamed.

It is technically feasible 1 complete the Software so tat ft will be available for use.

Management itends to complete the software and wse or seil it

There i an ability to use or sell the toftwars.

It can be demonstrated how the software will penerate probable future economic benefits.

Adequate technical, financial and other resources 1o complate the development and to wse or sell the software
ane available, and

The expenditure attributable so the sofware during its development can be relishly mensured.

Disectly atiributable ¢osts that are capitalized a3 part of the software include employes costs and an ippropriate porfion
of relevant overheads. Capitalized development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the point
at which the asset is ready for use, Research expendiure and development expenditure that do fot meet the crileria
above ure recognized as an expense as Ineurred. Development costs previoushy recognized A5 an expenss are nol
rechgitized os an asset in a subsaquent period.

- - - -

4.6 ool

{i Initial recognitien

The Company measures goodwill st the date of-aequisition ns:

. the fair value of the consideration transferred: plus

. the recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquires; plus

[ if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair valoe of the pre-existing equity interest in the
aequires,

. over the net recosnized amount {gemerally fair value) of the |dentifiable pssets acguired and liakilities

assumed. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment,
i) u et
Subsequently, poodwill is mensured ar oot Jesg scctanulated impairment losses,
(iii} Impairment of goodwil|
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually &5 al 31 December and when clreumstances indicate thid the carrying value
maybe impaired. Impainnent is determined by assessing the recovernble amount of each CGU {or group CGUs) 1o
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is bess than its carrying amount,
&n impairment loss i recognised

Impairment losses relating to goodwill is ot reversed cannot be reversed in future perinds.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conthed)

47 Firgncial instriments

Financial instruments — dmitiol recogmition and subsequent memssrement
A finencial instrament is any contract that gives rise (o o fnancial asset of oue entity and a financial lisbility or equity
instrument of another entity,

471  Financial assels

Trts i A hor [od T

The clessification of financial assets st initial recognition depends on the financinl asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managring them. Wah the exception of trade receivable that &o not
comtivin 8 significant financing coamponent or for which rhe Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measwres a finnncial assed at is fair value plus, in the case of o financial asel not at Fair value through profit or
lwss, TrRmsactbon costs

I order for & Fnancml asset 1o be classified and messured at amortized cost or fair vilue through OCI, it nesds to give
rise o cash flows that ave ‘solely payments of principal and interest (“SPFT™)" on the prin<ipal amount outstanding, This
seessment is referved 1o as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company's business mode| for mamaging financial assets refers to how it menages its fnancial assets in order to
generale cash fows. The business medel determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial asset, or bath.

Purchases or sales of fnancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
coavention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, ie,, the date that the Comparny
Comnits i purchase or sell the asset.

5 it
Fior purposes of subsequent measarement, the Compiny classifics its financial sssets us financinl pssets at amortized casl.
Fimancial assels at arorfized cos

The Company measures fnancial assets st amortized cost if both of the fallowing condifions are met:

L] the financial asset is held within 4 business model with the objective o hold finascial assots in order to collecs
contractual cash flows, and
s the-coniractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the princigal amount cutstanding,

Financial assets o amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective inerest (“EIR™) method and are subject
to ftmpairment. Galns and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecopnized, modified or irmpaired,

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost inchude trade receivable, amounts due frean related parties, bank
balances, and contracs assets.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eoutinued)
4.7 Femancial instrimments (contisued)
.1 Fmancial assets (contimued)

Drerecognition

A financial assat (i, where applicaiile, a pirt of a financial asset or part of 8 growp of similar financial assets) i& primarily
derecognized (ie.. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when;

the rghts to receive cash flows from the aseet have expired, or

the Company hias transfierred its rights 1o receive cash Nows from the assot or hias assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in fall without material delay to a thind pary under a ‘pass-through® amangement: and
either {a) the Company has transfiemed substantially all the risks and rewards of the aaset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred tor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the azzel, but has transferred conirol
of the asses,

When the Company has ransferred i rights o recelve cash flows from an asset or has entered nto a pass-through
arrangement, it evaheates if, and to what extsnt, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor reteined substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor wansferred controd of the ase1. the
Company continues to recognize he transforred asset to the extent of its continging invelvement, In that case, the
Company also recopnizes an associited tibility, The transferred ssset and the associnted Liability are measired on a basis
that reflects the rights and oblizations that the Company has retained.

Dmpiairne MR Cun Resety

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (*ECL"s) for all debt inssruments. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash fows due i accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the orgimal effective interest rate, The expecied cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are intzgral to the
contraciunl ferms.

For rade receivable and contract assets, the Compary applies 2 simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the
Cenpany does not wack changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance besad on lifetime ECLs at each
repartmg date. The Company has established o provision matrix that is based on its historical credit Joss experience,
adpusted for forward-looking factors specific o the debtors and the ECOTHEH G SnyIronamet,

The Company considers a finuncial asset m defiudt when contractual payments are 363 days past due, However, in certain
cases, the Company may also consider # financial asset to be In default when internal or external mformation indicates
that the Company unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancernents held by the Company. A financinl asset is written off when there is no reasonable cxpectution of recovering

The Company's palicy measares ECL4 on sach mstruments on o 12-month basis, However, when there has been g
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢ Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEM BER 202]

d SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

47 Firneial inetruments {continued)

471 Fimawcial Habifities

Titits fiater eyt 1,

This categary generaily appdies to trade pavables.

; in
A financial Hability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled of expines. When
BN existing financial Nability is replaced by another from the same tersder on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecogition of the
ariginal liability and the recogiition of & new lmbility. The difference in the Tespective carmying amounts is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss and other costprehensive income.

473 Offsetting of financial instruntets

there is a currentiv enforceshle legal right 1o offset the recognized amounts and there &= ap meention to serle on a net
basts, tis realize the assets and seile thee liabilities sinubaneously,

4.8 Fair value measurernent
The Company measvres financial instumenis a tair value at each reporting date.

Fair vahue is the price that would he mcerved to sellan asses or pasd do transfier & liability in an orderly transection between
market participants a the measurement date. The Fair valise meastrement is based on the presurmption that the ransaction
to seli the assed or transfer the liahility takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or Habilisy, or
. In the absence of  principal market, in the most advantageoss market for the asset or liability,

The prncipal or the most advantageols market must be accessihie by the Company.

The fair value of an ssset or o linbility is messured usmE the assumptions that marker participunts would use when prcing
an ssed or a liabdliny, sssiming that market participants act in their sconomic best fnterest.

The Company wses valuation echnigues that are appropriate in the circumsiances and for which sulficient cdata are
available to measure fair value, maximiring the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservabie
izt
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LEETAM SPORTS COMPANY {A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

d SUMMARY OF SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)
4.8 Ferlr value mensuremed (condisred)

All sssets and lisbilities for which fair value 5 measured or dischosed in the financial smtements are categarized within
the fair vilue hisrarchy, described as fellows, based on the lowest level input thar is significant to the fair value
MERSEEment A% a4 whale:

Level 1 — Cuioted {unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2—Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fiir value mepsurement
is directly or indirectly observable.
. Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpust that is significant to the fair value measmement
i unnbasrvable,
For assets and labilities thai are recagnized in the financial statements at fair valoe on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have soourrad bepwaen levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categotization (based on the
bowest beved inpurt that is significant to the Fair villue measirement as a whole) at the end of exch reporting period.,

The Company determines the policies md procedures for bath recurring fair value measurement and for non-recurring
Feasuratient.

Atesch reporting dote, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and labilities which are required
1o be remapsured or re-assassad e per the Comgeary s accounting policies. For this anabysis, the Company verifies the
maujor nputs applied i the Ftest vakston by agreeing the information in the valuation compntation. i comiracts and
other rebevant documents.

The Company alka conpares the change in the fair velue of each asset and linbility with relevant exctemal sources (o
desermine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Coempany has determmed chasses of sssats and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics apd risks of the asset or linbility and the level of the fair valie hicrarchy, s explained above.

4.9 Cash ared cash equivalents

For the purposes. of the statement of cash flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and deposits held with
banks, all of which are available for use by the Company unless otherwise stated and have muturities of three months
o bess, which are subject to msignificant risk of changes in values.

418 Statutory reserve

As required by the Company’s By-law and in compliance with Sandi Arahian Companies” Law, 10% ofits incame in
each year until it has built up & reserve equal 1o 30% of the capital. The Company may resolve 1o discontinue such
transfers when the reserve totals 30% of the capital. The reserve is not available for distribusion,

411 Imoesttories

Inventores comprises consinmahles {shampags, sanifizers, spare parts and other related stuff) kept 8t the fitness centers,
Inventories are stuted st the lower of cost and net realizsble valge. Cast includes expenditures incurred in arquiring the
imventories, and other costs incurred in bringlng them o their extsting docation and condition, Costs are nssignesd io
individual Eems of iny “om the basis of weighted average method. Costs of parchased inventory are determined
after deduicting rebuites and discounts if By,
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCE COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontinued)
12 Lease

A contract i3, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys a right w control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in evclsmge for consideration,

The Company a5 3 fessee

At the lease commencement duie, the Company recognizes a right-ofuse ssset and a cotresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease agreements in which it is the jessee. excepl for short-term lesses (leases with a lease term of 12
manths or less) and leascs of low-value assets, for which the Company recognizes the lease payments &s an operating
cxpense {unless they are incurred o produce assets) on o straight line basis over the term of the lease unbess another
systematic basis is move represenmtive of the time pattern in which eecnomic henefits from the leased asset are
consumed,

The lease liability & indtially measured at the present value of the lease pavments that are not paid at the commencament
date, discounted by usmg the rate fmplicit in the lease. IF this rate cannot be readily determined, the Compeny nses ifs
incremental borrowing rate. In geners, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount Hie which hag
been wsed to measure all the lease liabilities rocognized,

Ledse povments included in the messurement of the legse liability comprise:

ficed fease payments (including in-substarce fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

* variable kase payments that depend on an index or rate. mitially measured using the index or rate 8t the
conumeancement date:

*  the amount expecied to be pavable by the lessee under residual valye guaranbees;

*  the excreise price of parchase options, if the lessee is reasenably certain to exercese the options; and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the leass terth reflects the exercise of an option 10 terminate
the lease.

The lease lability Is presented a5 a separate line in the statement of financial position, classified as current and non-
curment.

The lease liubility iz subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease Tiabdility
{using the effective interest rate method) and by reducing the carrying amouni 1o reflect the lease paymesits imade.

The Company remeasures the lease |sability {and makes a comresponding adjustment fo the related right of-use asser
whenever:

® the lense tenm has changed or there s a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchass option, in which case
the lease linbility is remieasured by dizcounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount mate:

*  the lease payments change due to chenges in an index orrate or g change in expected payment under a guarmnteed
residual value, in which cases the lease Hability is remessured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rite (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in o floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rte is used): and

® @ lease contract is modified and the kase modification is not accounted for as a separste lease, in which case the
leise Hability i3 remeasured by dizcounting the revised lease payments wiing a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the comesponding lease linbility, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs, They are subsequently measured &t cost Jess
acsumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are deprecisted over the shorter period of the lease term or the cconomic usefal Hife of the
undériying asset. If n lease transfers ownership of the underlyving asset or the cost of the right-of-nse asset reflects
that the Company expects to éxercise s purchase optica, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
economic usefil iife of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts st the commencement date of the lease,
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT §TOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eontimised)
£12 Lesrep (comtiviied)

The nght-0f-use assets are presented as a separate ling in the stutement of financial position, unless the right-of-use
assel need the definition of investment property and in such case, it is presented in the statement of fingneinl positicn
within investrent property

Varishle rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not inchaded in the messurement the Tease liability and the
right-of-use assct. and the ralated payments are recognized as an expense (unless they are incurred to produce ssets)
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those paviments ocours.,

The Compapy as &

When the Company scts as & lossor, §f determines ad lease meeption whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease, To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfors
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to awnership of the underlying asset, In such case the lease is &
finance lease. otherwise it is an operating lease.

When the Cﬂ]‘t‘lﬁj‘ t5 an intermiediate kessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separataly.
It assenses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
ned with reference 1o the underlying asset.

If an arrangement containg bease and non-leass components, then the Company applies IFRS 15 10 allovaie the
consideration in the contract, The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in [FRS 9 o the
finance lease recaivables.

Lease payments received under operating leases are recognized as income on 3 straight-line basis over the lease ferm
as part of other incame.,

413 Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current linbilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlemens of
the liability for et beass |2 months after the reparting pericd,

Borrewing costs thar are directly attributable to the construction and ¢ or development of a qualifying esset ane
capitalized up 1o stage when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifving asset for s ntended
use are completed; otherwize, sieh cosis are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are dereca d framn the statement of financial position when the obligtion specified in the contract
is dis cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrving amount of a financial lrability that has been
extinguished or traasferred 1o another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferresd or
mbilities assumed, is recognized in statement of profit or oss as other income or finance costs
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2021

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
412 Empioyees’ end of service benefits
Short-term cmployee benefits

Shott-term employees’ benefits are expensed ns the related service is provided A lability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present kgl or constructive ehligation o pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employes and the obligation can be cstimated reliably.

Post-emtpiinmment obligabion

The Company operates a post-employment benefit scheme plans driven by the labor laws of the Kingdom of Saudi
Arahia,

The post-employment benefits plans are not funded. Valuations of the obligations under those plans are carvied out
by an independent actuary based on the projected unit credit method, The costs relating to such plans primarily
consist of the present value of the benefits atiributed on an equal basis 1o each year of service and the interest on this
obligation in respect of emplover service in Previgus years,

Current and Fw service costs related 1o posi-cmiployment benafits are recognized immedintely a3 “Emploves costs™
m profit of loss while unwinding of the lizbility at discount rates used are recorded as “Financial charges”. Any
chenges in net liability due to sctwarial valuations and changes in assumptions are taken 25 re-messurement in other

comprehensive inoome,

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from expericnce adjusiments and changes in actuarial BSSUIT A IONS are
recognized in the tPe:i-n-:r m which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income, Re-measurements are no
reclassitied i profit or Ioss in subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments ure
recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Valuations of the obligations under the plan are carried out using actusrial techniques on the projected unit credit
method. The costs relating 1o such plan primarily comstst of the present value of the henefits artributed on an equal
basis to each year of service and the interest on this obiigation in respect of employee service in previous years.

Cuorrent and past service costs related 1o t-employment benefits are recognized immediately in the statement of
profit or loss while unwinding of the liaility ot discount rates ussd are recorded as fimancial cost.

Re-mensurement gains and fosses arising from expericnce adjnstments and changes In actuarial assumptions are

recognized direcely in other comprehensive income and transferred to othar reserves in the statement of changes in
equity in the period in which they occur.

415 Fakat and midivect toses
Zakat iz provided i accordance with il Regularions of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA) in the

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on an accruals basis and charged to profit o loss. Differences, if any, resulting from final
nssesansents are adjusted in the vear of their fnalization.

25



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES {eontinued )
215 Zakat and indirect taxes Cenmffrrned)
Value-added tax ¢*VAT™)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except far:

*  where the VAT mcurred on g purchase of 855e6s or services i3 not recoverable from the tax anthority, in
which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel o as part of the EXpénsa
ifem as applicable; and

* incase of receivables and payables that are stated with the amount af VAT mchsded.

The net amoant of VAT recoverable from ar payable to the tax authority is classified 83 an nsset or a Takility,
respectively, in the statement of financial position,

£16 Provisions

Provisfons are recognized when the Company has a present begal or constructive obligation as a result of o past evem
i iz probable that an cutflow of resourcss will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated, Where there are o number of similar ohligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be required in
settlemnent is delermined by considering the clasg of obligations as a whole, A provision is recognized even if the
likefihood of an outflow with respect 1o any one fem inchuded in the sarme class of obligations may be sl If the
effect of the time value of money are material, provisions are discounted Lsing A current pre-tax rate that reflaces
current markes assessments of the Hime value of money and the risks specific to the lEability,

£ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTHONS AN D JUDGMENTS
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with [FRS as endorsed in KSA Fequires the use of estimares

and gssumptions that affect the beparted amounts of assets and Habilities and discdosure of contingent assets and
lighilities af the reporting date and the reported amounts of reverue and cxpenses during the reporting pesiod.

Significant areas where management has wsed estimaes, assemptions or exercised judgements are as follows:

Assunsption and estimation uncertaintios
The key assumptions concerning the future and ather key sources of estimation uncertninty a the reporting date, that
have a risk of causing an adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

Impairment of won-financial assets

typaiment exists when the cilTying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoversbie amount, which is the higher
ol its fair value less costs o sell and its value in use. The fixir value less costs to sell caloulation is basad on avallable
dati from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar pssets or abservisble market prices leas
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The valoe in use calculation is based on a discounted cash Mow model
The cash Mows are derived from the mudget for the projects’ useful lives and do aot include restructuring sictivites
that the Company is not ¥et committed to or significant future imvestments that will enhance the asset's performance
of the CGU being tested, The recoverahle Anhunl is senstive 1o the discount rate ised for the discounted cash flow
madel a3 well as the expected future cash inflows and the growih rate used for extrapolation purposes,
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LEEIAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

hmpairsient of accounts recetvabie

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable is made wsing ECL maodel which involves evaluation
of credit ratin%aa-:l days past due information, For individually significant amounts, this estimetion i performed on
an individieal basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are asseszed callectively.

Estimating the incremental borroteing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate mplicit in the lease. therefore, it uses ity incremeénta)
bomrowing rate (“IBR™) to measure leags liabilities, The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
Py to borrow over a similar term, and with & simikar security, the fimds necessary to obtain an asset of a simnilar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic enviranment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are avallsble (such as for subsidinrics that
do not enter inte finoncing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions. of the
lease. The Cotpany estimates the [BR using observable inputs (auch = market interest rates) when availeble and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the stand-alone cradit rating).

Useful lives of property and equipment
The Company's management determines the estimated wsefal lives of property and equipment for calculating
depreciation. This estimate is determined afier considering the expected usage of the assst or physical wear and tear,

Management reviews the usefid lives annuzlly and fimere depreciation charge would be adjusted where the
manngement helieves the useful lives differ from Pravimes estimates,

Gairg concerm

Management has made an assessment of the Company's ability o continue a4 a going concern and is satisfied that
the C has the nsources to continue in business for the foreseeshla future. Furthermare, the menagement is
not aware E any mierial uncertainties that may cast significant dookbt upon the Company’s ability to continne as a
goitig concem. Therefore, the finzncial statemerits cimtinug fo be prepared on the going concern basis.

Employees end of service benefits

The present value of the emplavees end of service benefits s determined using actuarial valustions. An sctuarizl
valuation fnvalves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the furure, These
inchade the determmation of the discount rate, future salary increases, mioitzlity rates and futmre pension increases,
Due to the complexity of tha valuation, the underfying assumptions, and its long-term nature, a DBO f highly
sensitive to changes i these assumptions. All sssumptions are reviewed annual Iy

Lhspment rabe

There is no deep corporate bond or government bond market in Saudi Ambis, Therefore, for selacting the discount

;?n-:. W ha].'-& considered the yieki available on Citi Pension Liabdlity Index (“CPLI™) of duration equal to the duratios
the Hability.

Miwiulity rate
The mortality rate is based on publicly available maortality tabbas for the specific countries. Thase mortality tables
tend to change only al intervals in response to demographic changes.

Sudaryy el fiityiry: pension increase
Estimates of fuire satary increase, takes into aecount inflation, seniority. promotion and past history.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202]

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS {(cantinued)

Sigwificant judgment in detenmining the lease term of contracts with renswal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, tosether with any periods coversd
by an option 10 extend the lease if ji is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
termingte the lease, i it is reasonably certain not to be excrcised,

The Company has several lease contracts that imclude extension and termination options. The Company apples
Judgement in evaluating whether it is reatonably certain whether or not to exercise the OpHoN 10 renew oF termimate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors thas ereatd @ cconomic ncentive for it to exercise the renewal
Afier the commencerment date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is & significant event or change in

d n#ncm itz ability to exercise (or not to exercice) the option to renew (&g,

Fair valys measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial linkilities recorded in the statement of finaricial position canmol
be measured based on quored prices in active markets, their fair valye is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow [ DCF)} model. The inpats to these modals are taken from ohservable markets
where possible, tut where this is not feasible. a depree nfgﬁgcmen: is required n establishing fair values,
Judgeraents mclude considerations of inputs such as Hquidity sk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumgptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fiir value of financial instruments.
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JIOINT STOCK. COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

i REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
N 20240
SR &R

Trpe af services
Subacriptions and mambership 774,516,173 581223078
Persotial training HL408.121 69 RET.A70
Rental mecome 10,484,753 5,718,340
Cihers 0,874,092 5,800,547

BR5.283,139 42,599 333

Set out below 15 the disaggregation of the Company s revenue from contracts with cusiomers, for the year ended 31
Deceinber, based on male and female centers offerings and segmented by primary geographical regions:

Swhecripriam gan memhership Pérsomal frafnimg Revatnl fncame
202 S Jail e LR Jozr
Types of
W ARITRTY
Ml Gl 887,407,619 436,986,159 61,262,659 0,189,203 7,435 046 4,524,401
Female centers 187,018,554 144,236,916 29,145,462 19,667,867 3,049,707 1,104,139
TT4.516173 581223075 0,408,121 64 257 00 10.484,753 5,718,540
_ ——————
el
Cestral pegion 333682915 271,828 46 44,102,228 33,163,008 £ 836,023 3443851
Wesilern region 305309 437 15,116,487 26,823,245 22 181,495 4,185 458 2114306
Eusiem region 123,704,611 84,701,744 13,778,307 10,735, 1 BB S63.272 52025
LIAE 11,72%.810 376,798 5 704,341 3.0 L 0,958
774,516,173 $81.223,075 121 69,857,070 18,484,753 4,718,540
7 COST DF REVENUE
2021 2620
SR Sl
Sakaries and related benefits 154,858 201 170,163 403
Deprecintion of property and equipment 132,896 480 1332523233
Deepreciation of right-of-use assets 8. TH2, 334 67209 (06
Lrtility 57,305,551 58407 197
Cleaning and services 32849435 IT3TTRZZ
Government and recruitment expenses 27,115,189 19,243 349
Maintenance and ropair L0111 12363 518
Consamables 3136871 5,897,038
Security and safegy B.3U5. 076 5385782
Stationary 1,863,120 J02T. TN
Cithers 5,049,986 6, 2%, 950
Rent concessions (nate 13) (18.933.943) (8.1 1e. 8501
513,900,309 533,708,769
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LEEIAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK

COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202]

& GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and related benefifs
Government and recruiting expenses
Water, electricity, and telecommunication
Professional fees

Bank ¢harges and commission
Depreciation- property and equipment
Depreciation- right of use asaels
Amortization of imangible assets
Maintenance, repair, and cleaning
Saationary

Othets

9 ADVERTISING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Advertising and marketing
Balary and related benefits

1 FINANCE COST

Profit on bomrowings
Fingnce cost o lease lizbilites (note 13)

] EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following 15 the caloubation of basic and diluted carmings per chare for the vear ended 31 December

Profit / (loss) for the vear
Mumber-of shares
Eamings / {Loss) Per Share

There has been no item of dilution affeeting the weighicd average number of ordinary shares.

30

2029 20
3R 5R
43,363,389 14,950,613
1,132,299 | 1,448 %53
0857230 7704074
6,789,479 5,074,276
8,036,977 4,861,438
4. THE. 009 4,481 558
1,001,934 Bl5.8T
116,342 11,149
1,031,243 2057625
1.103,329 1A57.714
5,102,543 4,142,103
B8.322,770 76,014 400
202r 2
SE SR
8,146,756 E2,106.858
6,159,007 4,366,430
14,405,763 16,473,288
2021 2020
SR SR
9,110,544 16,984,501
37268810 35,685 875
46,370,354 52,670,476
2021 2020
SR SR
206,020,219 (58,723 ,500)
52,383,361 52,383 151
3.93 {117
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

121 FROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (eontimued)

The Capital Work-in-Progress ("CWIP") as of 3 | December 202
amownting to SAR 1863 million and SAR 46.93 millign

respectively,

1 represents consruction costs and capital equipment
(2020; SAR 10686 million and SAR 24.72 million .

The total borrowing cost capitalized under CWIP during the vear amount to SAR 2.09 million (2020: SAR 2.66
million}, and the capitelization ryte was 2 720 (2020 2.41%). Tn addition, interest m respect lease liability amounting

to SAR 2.8 million (2020: SAR 5.1 millicai) was capitalized for under construction fimess ceners.

During the current year, the Company has recordad an impairment charge amounting 1o SAR
6.6 million} ngaimst the closure of four of the fitness centers,

L2 million (2020: SAR

Met book value of buildings amounting to SAR 9.4 million {2020: SAR 5.8 millien) are constructed on land owned

bey the Company,

Unring the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s maagement conducted 8 comprehensive assessment of
sports and other equipment kapt ¢ the fitness eonters. The assessment inchided phvaical coant, determining the assets’
condition, evaluating the operational status and the potential frire sconomic henefits of these assets. Based on this

assessment, the Company has written off an amount of SAR 40.6 million s the Company’s management determined
that there are no future economic benefits that can be availed from the use of these assets. Further, advances 1
contractors and suppliers amounting to SAR 3 million were written off,

Az ar 31 December 2021, the Company had secured borrowings against mortgages on land (Note 23 owned by the
Company with & cost of S 48.5,

13 LEASES

Ihe Company helds vasious properties on leases on which fithess centers whire constructed. Rental contract periods
range between 2 and 24 vears Leaso tarm are negotizled on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditicns,

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the mevements during the year:

22t 2020
SR SR
Opening balange TILATISS 840,332,792
Addivion during the year 97,931,453 5,103,653
Depreciation charge for the year (69,764,264) (6%,024,383)
Capitafized for under construction fitness cendars {6,387,297) (5,934 407
Disposal (5.872,512) -
Closing balance 747,354,535 T71ATT. 155
Movement in lease liabifities is as follows:
a2 2020
SR S
DOpening halance 90,751,460 936,27 400
Addition during the vear D7.031,453 5103633
Lease payments for the year (0,451,663 (73.285.433)
Rent concessions on lease pavments (nole 7) (18,933,043) (8,116,8507
Interest expense for the year {note 10) 3T 268,810 35,685,575
Disposal (70201509 -
Imerest eapitalized for under construction finess centers 1.B45,784 5093525
Closing balangcs B4l 483. 257 U200, 751,960
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

13 LEASES {continged)

Lease hability inchided Tn the ststement of financial POSTinm;

Mon-curment
Current

The maturity analysis of lease fihilitics is disclosed in note 32,

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost;

At | Janupry
Additions

At 31 December
A

At 1 January
Charge for the year
Al 31 December

Carrying amoimt

15 COODWILL

Ihiring 2016, the Compeny acquired two fiiness centers namel
the acquisition of these fitness centers amounting to SAK 4.4
2021 the management conducted an impairment fest to assess
its carrying value. Based on the impairment test the goadwill

there i o impairment is required.

(L] ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS

Advances 10 contractors fn respect of construction of fitress cender
Advances to suppliers agains purchase of 5porl equipment

Towtal

34

TS (Continucd)
2021

20271 2020
iR SR
861,584,048 B52.863,246
TORDE 300 67,588,714
941,483.25] U0, 751960
202 2
SR iR
10,996,725 10,964,925
1,203,675 20,800
122040, 400 10,996,725
D0286811 B014.462
116,342 11,149
9,141,953 Boz561l
3,058,447 1971, 114

S02F
SR

19,447 830

14,293,547

33741377

¥ Dwadmi and Alkhalee] with goodwill recomised on
million and 4.8 million respectively. As at 31 December
if the recoverable smount of the eoodwill i lower than
camying valuz is lower than the fair vabe and accordingly

L)
AR
10,120,199

4152220

15272419




LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

I FREPAYMENT AND OTHER ASSETS

2027 2020
iR 5K
Prepavinenis 13643010 5,630,845
Advances to suppliers 212K 840 18,731,459
Ciher prepayinents T.265.31% 5. 183,529
43,037,164 19,545,863
Less: Allowance against Pregayitents and other asers 6,703, 790 {4217 467%
36,333,370 35,328,396
Allocation of allowance of prepaviments and other assets i5 as follow:
Advanices to suppliers 3,708,125 2983849
Chher prepayments 998.674 1,231,618
6,703,799 4,217,467
Mevement in Allowance prepayments and other sssets is a5 follows:
201 2oz
Sk SR
Al the beginning of the vear 4,217,467 1231618
(Reversal) / charge during the year 2,486,332 2,585,840
Closing balance i, T3, T 4,217 467

13 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and entities

controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
The following are the details of the major relaled party transactions socred during the vear:

Related pary Nature of refattonship  Nature of transgetions
iz 2020
SR &R
Directors and key Key menagement Remuneration 7,042,095 6,797 412
management persotinel  personpel
Hamad Al AlSagri Sharehelder Lease rentals paid to a 2487123 3,400,000
sharcholder
AlSagri Holding Sharcholder affifiate  Subscription sold 197,831 143,171
Amounts dae from related parties - {included in trade receivables) are 85 follows:
2021 2028
SR SR
AlSagri Holding 45443 150 968
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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% THADE RECETVABLES

20271 2020
KR 5R

Subseriptions and membership receivables 14,642,908 LB B39, 505
Rzntal receivables 15,308,806 10,287 604

29,951,714 29127414
Less: Allowance for expected credit fosses
- Bubscriptions and membership recaivables (77.343) (%66 460)
- Rental receivahles (6,121,283) (6.915,751)

23,753,088 21,245,194
Movement in the Allowance for expected credit losses of trade recedvables is as fisllonars

202F 2020
SR g
At the beginning of the year 7882200 5439905
(Reversal) / charge during the vear {1,683, 5044 234219 15
Cloging balance i, 1 98,626 TEEL2Z20

Information sbout the eredit exposures on trade receivables is disclosed in note 32
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Far the purpose of the statement of cash MNowes, cash and cash equivalents are eomprizzd of the following:

2021 Hi2n

AR SR
Cash in hand 1,481,434 21,053
Cash et bank — current accounts 128,404,639 [35,972.824
Shart term deposits {note a) S0 M, 1D | W 0000, 1O

179,886,073 258 073,877

Mote &; These are placed with o local bank ax inerest bearing depasits which are hased o prevadling market interest
rates and have origimal maturity of 16ss than thiree ot

Il SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is SAR 523.8 miliion (31 December 20040: SAR 5238 million} divided intp 52,3
million shares (31 December 2020: 52,3 million shares) with a nominal value of SAR 10 mmely,

22 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Companies’ Law and the By-laws of the Company, the Company is required to set aside 10% of
s et incoma (o setutory reserve il such reserve equals fo 308 of the shire capital.

The statutory réserve is not avallable for distribution to the shareloiders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202]

i3 BORROWINGS

2021 a2
LY. b
Non-¢urrent portion of long-term Borrowings 238,038,485 J4B.048,639
Current portion of long-tarm borrowings 126912106 138937826
364,950,501 487,586,463
The movements in the borrowings during the yar was 28 il b
202 2020
SR SR
At | Famuary 487,586,465 424,584,201
Receipts during the vear Z0, 907 440 [B2.537 287
Repayments during the year (143,843,314) (119,637.023)
364,950,59 487,580,465

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had unmilized Bank financing facilities amounting 1o SR 193.6 millian (31
December 2020: SR 2374 million) o manage its shori-term and long-term loguidity requirements and for construction
of the fitness canters. The facilities have boen secured by the Company and a joint &nd several muerantee fegm cortain
sharcholders of the Company.

All barrowmgs are denominated in Saudi Rivals and are under Islamic financing mode being Murabaha and Tawarag
loans,

The above borrowings and fucilities include ceraim covenants which require the Company to maintain certain levels
of current and leverage ratios and certain restriction on dividend distribution snd alse netify the bank of any breach
or probable bresch immediately, As at 31 December 2027 the Company is in compliance with borrowings covenants.

The Company has entered e an interest re swap (1R5) with notional smoont of SR 35 million with g bocal
eommercial bank. The IRS sgreement reguire the Company to pay & fixed rate of interest of 3. 68% a5 on 3] December
2021 in exchange for floating rate inferest payvments based o0 Saudi Inter Bank Offer Rate (SIBOR). The RS conirct
will mature on 31 July 2023,

As gt 31 December 2021, the Company had securad Boravings against morgnges on Jand (Note 12) owned by the
Company with & cost of SR 38,5,

24 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The management has carried out an exercise to assess fhe presenl value of its defined benefit obligations at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020 jn respect of employees' end-ol-service benefits pavable under relevant local
repulations and contractual srrangements, The following tablex summsrize the companents of net benetits expense
recognized in the statemsent of comprehensive income and balanges reported in the statesment of financial position.

202r T
SR 5
Prescnt value of end of service benefits (Statement of financial position)
Present value of employees’ end of service benefits Habilities 41,421,197 37,158,533
22y 2012
KR LY
Statément of profit or loss
Ciirrent service costs B iR0414 8318200
Finance costs 717,179 T8
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LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL $TATE MENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 EMPLOYEES' ENDOF SERVICE BE NEFITS (continued)

Reconciliation of preseat value of liability

221 2k
JR SR

Asal 1 January 37,158,533 33,003,250
Current s2rvice eost HAR0.4106 £318.200
Imierest cost 717,179 771,854
Actuarial loss | (gain) (charged to ather comprehensive income) 1,503,080 (1,433,560}
Payments during the vear (6,338,011} (3,51 1.260)
Az at 3| December 41,421,197 37,158,533

2027 2
[iscount rate 2. 305 L 11%
Future salary increment rate (094 for 1% yvear, 2% thereafier) 2.00% 2.114%
Retirement age 0l years 6l vears

The sensitivity of the defined beaefit obligations to changes in the weighted principal assumplions is ns follows:

202 20

iR S8
Increase in discount Rate 1% (2, 280,878) (2,639.978)
Decrepse in discount Rate %4 1,553,000 4,380,787
Incresse in long term Salary Increases 1% 2645273 812 054
Diecrease in long term Salary Increases 1% (2, 404,123) {2,741 421)

The weighted average durstion of the defined henefit oblization 5 584 vears (31 December 2020- 8 vearsh, The
expected maturity analysis of undiscounted definad benefit obligation i3 as follews (time in vearsy:

2027 g
Y 4 5K
Wighin the next 12 months (next annual TEporting period) 508 586 5262, 164
Retween 2 and 5 vears 17,433,145 15,252,275
Beyond 5 years 24,341,578 X1, %64.339
Total expected paymenis 47,782 600 42478 TTR
15 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
22 22
SR xR
Trade suppliers T3 1307218 o 1,507 087
Contraciors in respect of construction of fithess centars 7,726,082 11, 85295 ]

80,865,297 52,660,018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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6 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIA BILITIES

Antmed expenses
Advances from castomars
Value added tax (VAT) payeble

F DEFERRED REVENUE

Ereferred subserimion income fowe:

Membership fee
Personal training fee

Deferrid rental incosme

iB LZAKAT
281 Charge For the year

The charpe for the vear is as follows:

Frovision figr the vear

28.2 Movements in zakat provision

AL the beginning of the vear
Cherge during the year
Pavments during the yvear
Anthe end of the vear

2021 R
5K SR
42,267,901 57,558 486
6,876,241 4,393 374
5,281,707 16,534,877
54,415,849 78,516,737
2027 2020
Sk SR
182,679,186 305498646
13,631,040 17,586,443
296,311,126 323,085 089
3,721,600 2937200
300,032,726 326,022,298
202¢ 2020
SR b
5,932,354 .
2021 2024)
SR SR
137,162 5,730,934
5932354 -
2 {5,593.77)
6,069,516 137,162
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28 ZAKAT {continued)
183 The principal elements of the Company s Zakat base for the year ending 31 December are ns follows:

e e 2024
FR 5K
Shore capital 513,833,610 323,833,410
Retained exrnings Hed 112,810 B4 B20 335
Statutory reserve 76,623,240 S6.021,218
Adjusted net profit / (loss) for the vear 232.971,268 (34824 4200
Book value of noh-current asiets 1337.631,727 2,242 | 1066
284 Adjusted met (boss) income
J027 2020
LY. Y
Profit [ {loss) for the vesr before zakal 211,952,573 (58,723,592
Prowision for employees end of service benefits 097564 9,080,103
Impairmeant of non-financial psseds 12,945 iy G.631.011
{ Reversal) ¢ provision for expected credit losses 1,683,594) 2342315
(hers B 5H, M 5.835,743
At the end of the yess 132971268 [34, 8244200

5 Siatus of assessments

The Company has submitted its zekat retumns for the years up to 2020, The Company has received zakot certificates
from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA™) for all the vears up 1o 31 December 2000 and has received
finnl nssessments fram ZATCA for the years up to 2015,

However, during the vear, the Company recelved an assessment order from ZATCA for the vear 2015 claiming an
additional liability regarding the ownership of shares by Target Opportunities for Trading Company, one of the
sharehalders in the Company during 201 5, that there are cemain possible taxes on the Company. ZATCA's view based
ol certain assumptions, is that the Company is partially subject to income tax. In the above-mentigned assessment,
ZATCA assumed that the above-mentioned sharcholder is owned directly or indirectly by nen-GOC nationals and
accordingly. te total amount of income tax exposure as stated by ZATCA is SR 9.48 million for income tx for the
vear 201 5, The former sharehalder was o sharcholder of the Company until and inchiding the year ended 31 December
1018 and consequently thers are further potentinl exposeres to the Company, if the ZATC A applics the same principle
li» subsequent years, The Company has filed an objection with ZATCA Aguinst this assessment, No provision has been
recorded in the Financial statements a5 the management believes that, based on their assessment and formal advice
received from an mdependent lezal advisor, the decision of the objeetion will be in Favour of the Campany.

The Company's zakst scsessmente for the years frem 2016 to 2020 are currently under review by the ZATCA. On 9
June 2021, the ZATCA raised some queries related to the years 2019 and 2020, which were responded. The ZATCA
has not 1ssued a final assessment to dote.

Lokat has been computed based on the Company's understanding and interpretation of the zakat regulations enforeed
i the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia. The ZATCA continues to issue circulars to clarify certain zakat regulations which are
usually enforced on all open years. The zakat regulations i Ssudi Arabia arc subject to different interpretations and
new zakal regulations have been tssued by the ZATCA dated | Jumads |1 14384 {coeresponding o 28 Febnuy 200 7).
The zakat linbifity a3 computed by the Company coubd be different from zakat lizhility &= assessed by the ZATCA for
years for which assessments have not yet been mised by the ZATCA.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITM ENTS
1 Contingencles

I the normal course of the business, the LCompany’s certain suppliers and contractors have commenced an BCticn geainst
the Company for claims and additional payments. The Company has consulted its legal advisor and for prodable cash
out flows, adequate provisions have been recorded. For certain cases where the fegal counsel has advised that it is only
possible, bt not probable, that the action will succeed, no provision for any liability has been made in these financial
SARIETEnlE,

The Company's bankers have fssued letters of gimrantees Fnounting to SE 4.99 million as ot 31 December 2021 (3]
Pecember 2020: SAR 2.9 million) againat land lease and letier of credit amounting to SR 41.2 million (2020: Fera),

20.1 Commitments

The Company bas capital commmitments on contracts for setting up fitness centers amounting to SB 41.8 million as at
31 Devember 2021 (31 Decamber 2020: SR 426 meel Loy

30 DIVIDENDS

O 27 Dhul Hijjah 1442H (eomresponding 1w (6 Aogust 2021), the Boand of Directors, resalved b destribute interim
cash dividends of SR 0,45 per share amounting to SR 23 57 million for the firsi half of 2021, Dividends have been
fully pasd daring the vear.

Lin 2% Rabi ol Awal 1443H {comesponding 1o 04 November 2021, the Board of Directors, resolved to distribiute
interim ca=h dividends of SK 0,78 per share amounting o SR 4086 million for the period ended 30 September 22|

Dividends have been fully paid during the vear.

31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
3.1 Geographical segmenis

For management purposes, the Comparry is organized into business units based o their geographical distribution and
hes four reporable operating segments as fallows:

Central Fegion

Western Region

Eastern Ragion
International Region UAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBE

R 2021

31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continned)

The following tables present revenue and pratit / (lass} mformation for the gecgraphical sepments for vear end.

As at and for yesr ended 31 Decomber 2021

Central Western Eastern Infernntional Total
Region Region Hegion Region — UAE
R oo KR o SR (g SR o SR oo
Revemies SO0, 3464 3T HES 138732 17,532 B8E 2RI
Costs of revenue (220,781 ) [199,082) (75,319) {17.808) (512960}
Groza pralit 17613 138573 63413 276) ¥71a3m3
Reverse for expected credit lowes 1,684 - E T 1,684
Impaitment of non-financial assaiz HiK) 11,146 = 12,046
As atand for year ended 31 December 2020
Central Western Eastern International Teal
Regiom Region Region Region — UAE
SR B 58 ‘nog SR T SR R o
Revenue 114,233 kL 43,50 13361 G2, 509
Ciosts of revenue (233,100 (205,119 (TE.14T) (16334) (522 A0y
Ciross profit [ {logs) 91138 34,2 17443 (2877 139,890
impaimment of nen-finencinl assets (h,631) - . [£A31]
Wrate-off of non-financial essels (2L {1 {52300, {710} (43,581
Murket segm ents
The following tables present revenue and profis / (Ioss} information for the Murket seemants
Maie Fitness Comiers Fewurle Fifmess Conters  Tril
2027 Hizn 2021 iz 2ar I
¥R "0y SR KR o0 ER SR e SR o
Revenee ffid, Rl 294, ThH 120470 145,811 BAE.283 02,554
Costs of revénoe [363.574) [3RA, 3400 {149.386) {136,369 {312, 960) {322,709)
Cirggs profit 30,230 110,428 71093 23462 37231 134,550
Comprekensive mcome
(kg 1ES (04 2y LN 21 (4923 152412 {14, 752)
Unaflocazed head office
COats (47895 (12.538)
Depreciation
- Property fc equipiment (53,4510 ) (94,1 349) {44,371} (39,113 {E57 802} 1133,252
- right-of-use assets {47,753) [48.536) {22,011} (18673} (670,764 (67204
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJIECTIVES AND POLICIES

Introduction

The Company’s principal financial ligbilities comprise of non-conventional short-term loans, long serm loans, leasa
liabilities and accoimts pavable. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to Fajce funds for the Company™s
operations and capital expendifure. The Company has a certain portion of prepayments and other currens assets. trade
receivable and bank balances that arise directly from ite ofiesatioms,

The Company is exposed 1o credit risk, market risk and liguidity risk. The Company risk govermance oversees the
management of these risks, The Company risk governance manifested in a set of establiched policies, procedures and
controls which uses the existing organizational structure 1o meet strategic tarpets. The Company*s philosophy revalves
o willing and knowiedgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic plan approved by the
Board

Risk manngement siructurg
A cohesive organzational structure s established within the Company tn order to identify, assess, montior and control
risks.

Board of DNrectors” Audit Committes
The apex of risk gevernance is the centralisad oversight of the Board of Directors and Audit Commites providing
direction and the necessary approvals of strategics and policies in order o achieve defined corparate zoals,

Senmpr managemeni
Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within tha
Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that 2 connterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial indtrument or custiomer CONTact,
leading to & financinl loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its trade receivables. amounts due from related
partics and bank balances.

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables

Trade receivables generally exposed 1o significant credit risk, therefore, the Company has established 3 number of
procedures to manage credit risk exposure including lmiting transactions with specific countes-parties, evaluation of
the customers' credit worthiness, formal credit approvals

The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, priesarily driven by the day’s delinguency #s a tool 1o manage
the quality of credit risk of Uade receivables. Further, the Company hiet categorized iis trade receivables into sube
categonized on the basis of similar credit risk chascteristic, Exposres within each credit risk category by services
provided classification and an ECL is calenlated for each service pravided based on the delinquency status and actual
credit [ods experience over the past vears. These ratog are multiplied by scaber factors to reflect differences batween
economic conditions. curvent conditions and the Company's view of econsmic conditions over the expected lives of
trade receivahles.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORJECTIVES AND POLICTES {continued)

Credit rish {continued)

Cash and cavh equilvalens

The company held balances with banks of SR 179.9 million as 8t 31 December 2021, which represents thelr maximum
exposure on these assets. These balances are beld with banks having strong credit ratings. While cash and cash
equivalents ure also subject o the expected credit loss {ECL)requirements of IFRS 9, the identifled ECL was
iminaterial.

Trade receivables are amoumt due from customers for merabership sold or ether services rendered in the ordinary
course of business. The aversge credit period is fess than one year and therefore are all classified as current. The
Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractial cash flows and therefore measire
them subsequently at amortized cost wsing etfective interest methaod

Edise to the shorter nature of the carrent receivables, they are camrying amount is considered to be the same as they are
fair value,

The company has applisd 1FRSO sinplified approach to measuring expecied eredit losses which et o lifetime
expectzd loss allowances for all trade receivables based on a provision inatrix, The provision matrix tikes into sceouns
historical credit oss experience and is adjusted for pverage historical recovery rites. To measure the expecied credin
losses, trade receivables have been prouped hased on share credit fisk characteristics and is besed on the ageing of the
days the receivables are past due and the rates s caleulated in the provision matrix. On that basis. the allowance as
31 December 2021 and 2020 was determined as follows:

Mem bership receivables - Corporate customers.

F Becember 2027
Friehin f-180 days  IBI-363 days
credir ulving P Toinl
periad dlne dure
ITO5E CAMTY D amonni 14183277 20041 163670 14,642 908
Expected credit Inss mnge (%) LO0%  02-0.63% 1.56%-
Loss alloveance - 5u TT.03 TT.A4
Specific provision - - - -
37 December 2620
Firhin I-180 days  181-367 days
Creait piisi st Fotal
Perind i e
CIF0ss CArTying amoint [T, 788 963 24410 T e | B.830 803
Expected credit foss range {Ya) {00 dl-13% d5%-E7.1%
Loss allomwancs - 37 - 37
Spevific proviseom - - L 066,432
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AND POLICIES (enntimwed)
Credit risk (continued)

Reat receivables

31 December 2021
Withisn =180 days TRI-365 days  More than
credit Jroasy PisE ! year past Tawtal
period e ilhie dne
Ciross carry ing amount LESTAM 4235817 38T B30 15306806
Expected credit loss range (%) 0% 033% - 164% 240% . 6L01% 10
Loss allowance = - - 2434963 PRET R
Specific provision - 765,173 - 2921,147 3686320
Tl Dacember 2020
Hitivin I-1 80 derys 181-365 days  More than
eredit Faltiy] st 1 year pasi Toeml
Feriod die dure dere
Ciross carrying amount 504,215 1518443 10110565 5253875 14,287 60
Expected credit foss range {%o) Fa 027%-L33%  90% - 60.55% 10154
Loss allowance - - = 7 08T 07087
Specific provision - L3M 626 Hi250 4,640,758 o6, I, i

The Company ks not significantly exposed (o cradil risk on its other current asset as the amployes loans are sequred
agamel end of service balance and the remaining balance is not significant,

Mlarket risk

Market risk is the risk thas the fair value or fubure cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes
i market prices, Market risk comprises threo types of risk: commission rate risk, currency risk and commodity risk.
Financial mstruments affected by market risk include short-term loans. The sensitiviey analyses in the following
sections relate to the position s at 31 December 202 | and 2020,

Interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest — bearing financial irstruments are os fol lirws:

22 e e

SR Ry
Borrowings
Fixed mate instruments 350000 | 152233 633
Yariable rate ingtruments J29.956,212 372152 832
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Interest rafe risk {(continmed)

Clash fTow sensitivity analysis for variable rate inseriments
A reasomably  possible change of 100 basis
mereased decreasedjprofit or Joss for the vear b

Temain constant

Varmble rate lnsiruments

100 bp Inerense
1) bp Dievrease

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty
with fmancial instruments, Liquidity
close to its fair valie, The Compa
requirements on regular basis, The C

The tnble below summarizes the materity profile of the Group®s financial

on eontraciuel undBcounted payments,

A1 Devember 2037

Bomowmgs®
Accounts pavable
Aeorued expenses
Lapse liabilities

JI December 20

Borrowings®
Accounts payvakle
Acerued expenses
Lease liabilities

prints i intercst rates wm the reporting  date would have
amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that ol other variable

202 2020

S SR
(3,649,516} {3,722 523

3,649,506 3,722,528

in raising funds to meet commitments associated
risk may result from an inability to realize financial assets quickly at an amount
Ny mansges its liquidity risk by monitoring working capital und cash flow
campsny manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that bank facilities are avisilable.

liabilitles, excluding kease liability, based

Within 3 Faoi2 2t 3 Maore than
Maarifer Ficrenifes FENIFN T years Fotal
SR SR 5K 3R 5K
31,895 394 104,777,724 247,893,377 . 382,566 405
BO,868,207 = . = R 865,297
43818490 - - - 43 RIR 490
38,719,304 TT AR, 727 531,194,036 S03.760,715 LAS1,012,842
196,208, 545 179,216,451 TTOOET,413 503,760,715 1658363, 124
Within 3 Fio 42 e i Muore ifun
Merths IR s § peers Toval
SR SR SR SR SR
35,151.520 1I7 482,186 368834321 - 121 468,027
52660018 : o = 52,660,018
57388480 2 - 7588485
25,501,376 TT.704,128 502,521,805 530,277,314 136,404,623
171,301 400 195,186,314 871,356,126 530277314 1,768,121, 154

*Barrowings include finance cost of SR 17,62 million {31 December 2020: SR 34,9 million),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBFR 2021

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND FOLICIES {continged)
Liguidity risk (continued)

At the statement of frapcial position date, gearing ratio and current ratio were ai follows:

i ed ) 2020
SR SR
Equity 804,569,669 G0 454,064
Ligkilities (excluding deferred PEvEnE) 1489215 701 576,810,875
2,293 TH5. 370 2,24!.294.931
202F 202
SR &R
CGiearing ratio 64.92% Th.37es
Current ratio (excluding deferred revenuc) .73 LR
As of 31 December 2021, the masagement also analyvses the liguidity risk as follows:
2y Jtia
&R i8R
Current finamcial assets 203,639,168 IR IT0082
Curren linbilities excluding deferred revenye (348,171,071} (338,140,457
Met current financial lizhility positian (144,531,910 (54 B6% 475)

The Company manages liquidity risk by ensutiig suffichent un-availed borrowing facilities. As af 31 December 2021,
unutilized bank borrowing facilities of SR 193.5 million were nvailable from multiple banks for mannging the working
cupital requirements. Morsover, the Company penernted cash Aow from operating activities amounting w SR 438

million for the yvear 2021.

In relation to the lguidity risk of the Company, the management monitors the Company™s cash flow to ensure the
existence of sufficient funds in erder 1o meel the Company's obligations for a period of & least next twalve months

Themt The reporting date:

The management is not #wars of wny material uncertainty that mame cas=t significant doubt up on the company’s ability
to constinue as golng concern there for these financial statements have been prepared on 4 roing concemn basis

33 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company capital management i 10 ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order

to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its copital structure and makes adjustments to itin light of changes in business conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or Processes during the year ended 31 December 2021 and the NE
ended 31 December 2020, Capital comprizes share eapital. sdditionnl equity comtribution. siatuoey reserve. retained
camings and other reserves and is measured at SR 804.6 million a5 a1 3| December 2] (2020 SR 664 million).
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LEETAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ({Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

34 COVID-19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The existence of novel coronavirus {Covid-19) was confirmed in early 2020 causing disruptions to businesses anid
econamic activity scross the globe. In response 1o the spread of the Covid- 19 in KSA and UAE, where the Company
operates, and irs resulting disruptions to the social and econmic activities in those markets, Legjam’s management
has proactively assessed bs FMPACEs on its dperstions and has taken o series of preventive measures, including the
creation of on-going crisis management feams and processes 1o ensure the bealth and safety of ws employees.
Clkvimers, consumers and wider community xs wel],

The ¢onsequences of the Covid-19 pandemic bave muterially affected the Lompany’s business since all (he
Company’s fimess centers rernained closed from 5 February 202 | to 6 March 2021 e 30 days (2020 15 March 2020
to 20 June 2020 f.e. 98 davs) This resulted in the suspension of sales of subscriptions to the customers a5 well #s the
Suspension of revenue recognition during the aforementioned periad while the Company continued to incur certain
tixed and semi-variable expenditures that has impactad the financinl performance and cash flows of the Company.,

Lezfam’s management has considered potential impacts of the cwrent ecopomic uncerizinties and volatiline in
determination of the reported amounts of the Company”s financial and non-financial assers and these are considered
fo represent management's best assessment based on obsarvahle in formation on the period-end date, Markeds however
remain volatile, and the recorded amounts remain sensitive to market fuciuations.

35 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the classificution used for the vear ended 31
Deocmber 2021, However, such reclassification have not resilted in gny additional impact on Uity or loss for
comparative figures. The key reclissifications wese 85 follows:

Reclavsiffeation from Reclassification w Annvnit (SR}
- Impairment boss on property and

Other expenses- Irmpairment loss AR 6,631,010

Cther income- Advertising income Revenus from contracts with cusiomers 347,147

OiheT income - rent concessions Cost of revenue §.116.8501

Propetty and equipment — Intangible assws [ntangible assery Lo, 114

M EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING PERIOD

Mo evenits have arlsen subseguent 1o 31 Decemher 2021 and before the dase of isssting the financial statements tyar
coubd have 3 significant effect on the financial stateiments as at 31 December 2021,



LEEJAM SPORTS COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

37 BRANCHES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has the fallowing branches, which e operating onder asperate CR

Location CH. lssuance Das
Fizacdh |01 053 7984 1406/ 1433H
Rivadh 1010439237 L0143 TH
Riyadh L0 MR 1O 1 437H
Damima 2030005503 [5M051437H
Taizan SS00035652 21:03/1438H
Jeddah 4030248T 20 230 4341
Jeddah 40307180323 106 T429H
Majran SOSAZAIG 02403/ 1437H
Tair E2050910 2941/14348H
Rivailh 1010512788 | 302 14394
Fuhail HIESMSLEE 078 438H
Riyadh (0134125 A8 1439 H
Al Badina 465021 FB20 221 0N 1480H
Al Madinn 45021 1820 A2 1440H
Makkah Q3| 22R724 2100/ 1440 H
Makksd 4031278724 221N 14400
Feddah 403035895 22710/1440H
Bkaka 34001 20275 02703/1442 H
Riwelly 0149568 70144241
Klamis JR¥S346935 2M0A1440 H
Hail 3350147653 I l44] 1
Buraiifah 13 E3083TH 1403 1442 H
Riyadh 10730641 290171443 H
UAE trade Heenses
Dubai Branch T245040 111172015
Ros Al-Khaimat Brancl 413482 A0S
Rashidya Branch (Ajman) TR53E 24MR2016
Hazana {Sharjnh) ThaET0a w1 0 Dl

M APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These firancinl statements were approved for issusnce by the Compary's Board of Directorg
(correspomding to & February 2022},
A\
Mevhamemond MeFaiuaidin
Chitgl Fimamciel (ifcer

CAmtiomy Crafg Biion Tl
Asitng Ol Executrneg Dficer Cheivrmimn
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